

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
DECLARATION OF LAND USE RESTRICTIONS FOR
SHOCK HILL SUBDIVISION

THIS SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED DECLARATION OF LAND USE
RESTRICTIONS FOR SHOCK HILL SUBDIVISION

~~(this (“Declaration”) and executed”)~~ is made as of ~~August 18, 1999~~, this ___ day of _____
~~202~~, by ~~Shock Hill Development LLC, a Colorado limited liability company (“Declarant”).~~ If is
the ~~intent of Declarant, as owner of all Owners~~ of the Property ~~subject, as described herein, all~~
~~pursuant to the Article XVIII of the Amended and Restated~~ Declaration of Land Use Restrictions
for Shock Hill Subdivision ~~dated June 8, 1999 and (the “First Amended Declaration”)~~ as recorded
in the real property records of Summit County, Colorado ~~011 June~~ August 20, 1999 at Reception
No. ~~598538 (the “Original Declaration”), to hereby amend and restate in its entirety 603276 by~~
SHOCK HILL PROPERTY OWNERS’ ASSOCIATION, INC. a Colorado non-profit corporation
~~(the Original Declaration. This Declaration supersedes and replaces “Association”)~~ and at least
~~seventy-five percent (75%) of the Original Declaration-owners of Lots (the “Owners”):~~

RECITALS

A. The Association and the Owners desire to amend and restate the First Amended Declaration in its entirety as set forth in this Declaration.

B. This Declaration supersedes and replaces the First Amended Declaration.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing the Association and the Owners hereby amend and restate the First Amended Declaration in its entirety as follows:

I. INTRODUCTION, PURPOSE, AND DECLARATION

1.1 Declarant has caused certain property to be subdivided as the Shock Hill Subdivision Property Owners’ Association is a subdivision in the Town of Breckenridge, County of Summit, State of Colorado (the “Subdivision”) originally created pursuant to the Declaration of Land Use Restrictions for Shock Hill subdivision dated June 8, 1999 and recorded in the real property records of Summit County, Colorado August 20, 1999 at Reception No. 598538, as amended (the “Original Declaration”). The portions of the Subdivision described on Exhibit A attached hereto, and any other property that is subjected to this Declaration, are hereinafter referred to as the “Property.”

1.2 Declarant desires

1.2 The Owners, as described herein, desire to develop the Property as a community that is not subject to the Colorado Common Interest Ownership Act, Colorado Revised Statutes 38-33.3-101 through 38-33.3-319 (as the same may be amended from time to time, the “Act”), except as otherwise provided in Article III below.

1.3 The purposes of this Declaration are to set forth limitations and restrictions with respect to the use, density and design of improvements on the Property with the goal of (a) preserving the natural beauty of the Property and its setting, (b) maintaining the Property as a pleasant and desirable environment, (c) establishing and preserving a harmonious design for the community, and (d) protecting and enhancing the value of the Property.

 ~~1-A.4~~ To further the general purposes herein expressed, ~~Declarant, for itself, its successors and assigns, hereby declares~~the Owners declare that the Property shall, at all times, be owned, held, used, occupied, sold and conveyed subject to the provisions of this Declaration and to the covenants, conditions and restrictions, easements, reservations, assessments and charges herein contained, which shall run with the Property and bind all parties having any right, title or interest in the Property, or any portion thereof, and their respective successors, assigns, heirs, devisees and personal representatives.

II. DEFINITIONS

2.1 “Accessory Apartment” means a residential unit constructed as a part of a Single-Family Structure, except that such apartment may contain no more than 1200 square feet and no more than one dwelling unit.

2.2 “Act” shall have the meaning given to it in Section 1.2 above.

2.3 “Annual Assessment” means the Assessment levied and assessed each year against each Lot pursuant to Section 7.5 below.

2.4 “Articles” means the Articles of Incorporation of the Association, as the same may be amended from time to time.

2.5 “Assessment” means an Annual Assessment or a Default Assessment levied pursuant to Article VII below.

2.6 “Assessment Lien” means the lien of the Association on a Lot described in Section 7.7 below.

2.7 “Association” means The Shock Hill Property Owners’ Association, Inc., a Colorado nonprofit corporation, and its successors and assigns.

2.8 “Association Documents” means the Declaration, the Articles, the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations, as the same may be amended from time to time.

2.9 “Bed and Breakfast” has the meaning given to that term in the Development Code.

2.10 “Bylaws” means the Bylaws of the Association, as the same may be amended from time to time.

2.11 “Chalet House” operation has the meaning given to that term in the Development Code.

2.12 “Common Elements” means any real estate, together with any improvements located thereon, that is owned or leased by the Association or that the Association is otherwise entitled or required to operate, manage, maintain or repair, including, without limitation, the median landscaping in Shock Hill Drive.

2.13 “Common Expenses” means (a) all costs, expenses and liabilities incurred by or on behalf of the Association, including, but not limited to, costs, expenses and liabilities for (i) managing, operating, maintaining, repairing, altering and improving the Common Elements; (ii) administering and enforcing the covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations and easements created hereby; (iii) levying, collecting and enforcing the assessments, charges and liens due the Association pursuant hereto; (iv) operating the Association; (v) performing any other functions or duties of the Association pursuant to the Association Documents; and (vi) allocations to reserves.

2.14 “Declarant” means Shock Hill Development LLC, a Colorado limited liability company, and any Person that is designated by a written instrument signed by Declarant as a successor or assignee of Declarant under this Declaration. Such instrument may specify the extent and portion of the rights or interest as a declarant that are being assigned, in which case Shock Hill Development LLC shall retain all other rights as a declarant.

2.15 “Declaration” means this instrument and all amendments and/or supplements hereto hereafter recorded in the real property records of Summit County, Colorado.

2.16 “Default Assessment” has the meaning given to it in Section 7.6 below.

2.17 “Design Guidelines” has the meaning given to it in Section 9.3 below.

2.18 “Development Code” means the Town of Breckenridge Development Code as it may from time to time be amended, revised or supplemented.

2.19 “Lot” means any area of real property located within the Property that is designated by number or letter as a lot or tract on any subdivision Plat filed or recorded in the real property records of Summit County, Colorado, unless such area is further subdivided, in which case, “Lot” means each lot or other legally transferable unit of the area (including, without limitation, a condominium unit or duplex unit) following such subdivision. For the sake of voting only, each unit within any du- tri- or four-plex shall constitute a Lot.

2.20 “Master Plan” means the Master Plan for the Shock Hill Property, dated May 12, 1998, and recorded in the real property records of Summit Colorado on December 21, 1998 at Reception No. 584377, as it may be amended from time to time.

2.21 “Membership” means a membership in the Association and the rights granted to Owners pursuant to this Declaration to participate in the Association.

2.22 “Mortgage” means any mortgage, deed of trust or other document creating a security interest in any Lot or interest therein as security for payment of a debt or obligation.

2.23 “Mortgagee” means any Person named as a mortgagee or beneficiary in any Mortgage, or any successor to the interest of any such Person under such Mortgage.

2.24 “Multi-Family Residential Lots” means any Lot designated on any Plat or in the Master Plan for MFR, THM or Duplex use.

2.25 “Open Space” means any portion of the Property designated on any Plat or in the Master Plan as Open Space or Private Open Space.

2.26 “Owner” means the Person(s) who own of record, according to the real property records of Summit County, Colorado, fee simple title to a Lot or an undivided portion thereof. If there is more than one record holder of legal title To a Lot, each shall be an Owner. ~~The term “Owner” shall include Declarant to the extent Declarant is the holder of fee simple title to a Lot.~~

2.27 “Person” means any natural person, corporation, partnership, limited liability company, association, trustee or any other entity recognized as being capable of owning real property under the laws of the State of Colorado.

2.28 “Plat” or “Plats” means the plat(s) of the Subdivision on file with the Clerk and Recorder of Summit County, Colorado, as such plat(s) may be amended or supplemented from time to time.

2.29 “Property” shall have the meaning given to it in Section 1.1 above.

~~2.30 “Subdivision” shall have the meaning given to it in Section 1.1 above.~~

~~2.31~~ “Review Area A” means those portions of the Property located within Lots 1 through ~~38 and Tracts A, B, I, J, L, M, N, O and R60~~ of the Subdivision, which shall be subject to the authority of Review Board A.

~~2.32~~³¹ “Review Area B” means those portions of the Property located within Tracts ~~A, B,~~ C, E, F and G of the Subdivision and the median landscaping within Shock Hill Drive, which shall be subject to the authority of Review Board B.

~~2.33~~³² “Review Board” means (a) Review Board A with respect to Review Area A, and (b) Review Board B with respect to Review Area B; and “Review Boards” means both Review Board A and Review Board B.

~~2.34~~³³ “Review Board A” means the design review board established by the Association in accordance with this Declaration to perform the functions of the Review Board with respect to Review Area A.

~~2.35~~³⁴ “Review Board B” means the design review board established by the Association in accordance with this Declaration to perform the functions of the Review Board with respect to Review Area B.

~~2.36~~³⁵ “Rules and Regulations” means any instruments adopted by the Association or the Review Boards for the regulation and management of the Property, as such instruments may be amended from time to time.

2.36 “SFE” shall have the meaning given to it in the Master Plan.

2.37 “Single-Family Residential Lot” means any Lot within the Property which has been designated on the Plat or the Master Plan for SFR use.

2.38 “Single-Family Structure” means a residential structure containing one, detached dwelling unit as defined in the Development Code and which may also contain one Accessory Apartment.

~~2.40 “Supplemental Declaration” means additional covenants, conditions and restrictions which modify the covenants, conditions and restrictions set forth herein or further restrict the use, density or design of the applicable property, and which are placed on the Property or any portion thereof by one or more instruments recorded in the real property records of Summit County, Colorado, prior to the time Declarant transfers or conveys such Property or a portion thereof to any third party.~~

~~2.41~~

~~2.39~~ “Subdivision” shall have the meaning given to it in Section 1.1 above.

2.40 “Trail Easement” means any portion of the Property designated on any Plat or in the Master Plan as a Trail Easement or Public Trail Easement.

III. APPLICABILITY OF THE ACT

As set forth in Section 7.9 below, the annual average Common Expense liability of each Lot, exclusive of optional user fees and any insurance premiums paid by the Association, shall not exceed the amount specified from time to time in Section 38-33.3-116 of the Act as the maximum annual average common expense liability of each unit restricted to residential purposes ~~(currently \$400 per year)~~, which was set at \$400 per year in 1998 and is to be adjusted annually for inflation, as described in Section 38-33.3-116(3). Accordingly, pursuant to Section 38-33.3-116 of the Act, the Property is subject only to Sections 38-33.3-105 through 38-33.3-107 of the Act and such other sections of the Act which this Declaration expressly provides apply to the Property.

IV. THE ASSOCIATION

~~4.1 Formation of the Association. On or before the date on which Declarant conveys to any Person other than Declarant fee simple title to the first Lot within the Property, Declarant shall form the Association.~~

~~4.2 Purposes and Powers.~~

4.1 Purposes and Powers.

(a) The Association's purposes are to: (i) manage, operate, construct, improve and maintain the Common Elements, as necessary or appropriate; (ii) administer and enforce the covenants, conditions, restrictions, reservations and easements created hereby, (iii) levy, collect and enforce the assessments, liens, charges and penalties imposed pursuant hereto; (iv) create, manage and otherwise provide recreational and social activities for Owners and residents of the Property and their guests; (v) in the event of an unplanned vacancy on any of the Review Boards, appoint replacement member(s) to the Review Boards with the goal of ensuring that all improvements within the Property are constructed in accordance with Design Guidelines adopted by such Review Boards ~~(except as otherwise provided in Section 9.9 below)~~, (vi) take any action necessary or appropriate to protect the general welfare and safety of Owners and residents of the Property and their guests, and (vii) regulate and manage the Property with the goal of enhancing and protecting its value.

(b) Unless expressly prohibited by law or any of the Association Documents, the Association may take any and all actions that it deems necessary or advisable to fulfill its purposes. Without in any way limiting the foregoing, the Association may:

- i. adopt and amend the Articles (as provided therein), the Bylaws and the Rules and Regulations;
- ii. adopt and amend budgets for revenues, expenditures and reserves, and collect Assessments;
- iii. hire and fire managing agents and other employees, agents and contractors;

- iv. institute, defend or intervene in litigation or administrative proceedings in its plans on behalf of itself or two or more Owners on matters affecting the Property;
- v. make contracts and incur liabilities;
- vi. regulate the use, maintenance, repair, replacement and modification of the Common Elements;
- vii. cause additional improvements to be made part of the Common Elements;
- viii. acquire, hold, encumber and convey in its own name any right, title or interest in real or personal property;
- ix. grant easements, leases, licenses and concessions across, through, under or over the Common Elements;
- x. impose and receive any payments, fees or charges for the use, rental or operation of the Common Elements;
- xi. impose charges for late payments of Assessments, recover reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements and other costs of collection for Assessments and other actions to enforce the rights of the Association, regardless of whether suit was initiated, and, after notice and an opportunity to be heard, levy reasonable fines and impose reasonable penalties for violations of Association Documents or any of them;
- xii. impose reasonable charges for the preparation and recordation of amendments to this Declaration or statements of unpaid Assessments;
- xiii. provide for the indemnification of the Association's officers and directors and maintain directors' and officers' liability Insurance;
- ~~(xiii) — assign its right to future income, including its right to receive Assessments;~~
- xiv. provide or procure any services necessary for the safety or security of the Property, Owners, guests or visitors;
- xv. approve, install, maintain, repair and replace signage;

- xvi. provide or procure landscaping services within the Property;
- xvii. plan, arrange and hold recreational activities for the benefit of Owners, residents and their guests;
- xviii. become a member of another property owners' association or other similar associations;
- xix. exercise any other powers expressly or implicitly conferred on it by the Association Documents or any of them;
- xx. exercise all other powers that may be exercised in Colorado by nonprofit corporations; and
- xxi. exercise any other powers necessary or proper for the governance and operation of the Association.

4.32 Association Documents.

(a) Each Owner shall comply with and benefit from each term, provision, covenant, condition, restriction, reservation and easement contained in the Association Documents. The obligations, burdens and benefits of Membership in the Association touch and concern the Property and are, and shall be, covenants running with each Lot for the benefit of all other Lots and the Common Elements.

(b) In the event that there is any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and conditions of this Declaration and the terms and conditions of the Articles, the Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations, the terms and conditions of this Declaration shall control. In the event that there is any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and conditions of the Articles and the terms and conditions of the Bylaws or the Rules and Regulations, the terms and conditions of the Articles shall control. In the event of any conflict or inconsistency between the terms and conditions of the Bylaws and the terms and conditions of the Rules and Regulations, the terms and conditions of the Bylaws shall control.

~~4.4~~^{4.4-3} Books and Records. Upon request, the Association shall allow Owners and Mortgagees to inspect current copies of the Association Documents and the books, records, budgets and financial statements of the Association at the offices of the Association during normal business hours and under other reasonable circumstances. The Association may charge a reasonable fee for copying such materials as well as for the time of Association staff members associated with such inspection.

~~4.54~~ Personal Liability and Indemnification.

(a) No officer, director, employee agent or committee member of the Association shall be personally liable to the Association or any Owner for any injury, damage, loss, cost or expense suffered or incurred by reason of any act or omission of such officer, director, employee, agent or committee member unless a ~~court~~court of competent jurisdiction finds that the act or omission of such officer, director, employee, agent or committee member was wanton and willful.

(b) The Association shall indemnify and hold harmless each present or former officer, director, employee, agent or committee member of the Association against any and all claims, suits, proceedings, injuries, damages, losses, costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, attorneys' fees and disbursements, asserted against or incurred by any such present or former officer, director, employee, agent or committee member to the fullest extent permitted by the Association Documents; provided, however, that in no event shall the Association indemnify or hold harmless any such officer, director, employee, agent or committee member to the extent that he or she is personally liable for an act or omission under paragraph 4.54(a) above.

V. MEMBERSHIP IN THE ASSOCIATION

5.1 Membership.

(a) There shall be one Membership appurtenant to each Lot. A Membership may not be separated from the ownership of the Lot to which it is appurtenant.

Any Membership appurtenant to a Lot having more than one Owner shall be shared by such Owners, and each such Owner shall be a member of the Association. The voting rights of any such members shall be shared between or among the Owners as provided in paragraph 5.3 below.

5.2 Transfer of Membership. An Owner shall not sell, assign, transfer, convey, pledge or encumber the Owner's Membership in any way except upon the sale or encumbrance of the Lot to which the Membership is appurtenant, and then only to the purchaser(s) of fee simple title to the Lot or the Mortgagee of the Lot. A transfer of ownership of a Lot may be made by deed, intestate succession, testamentary disposition, foreclosure of a Mortgage of record or such other legal process as is now effective or may hereafter become effective in that regard under the laws of the State of Colorado. Any attempt to transfer a Membership in a manner other than those permitted by this Section 5.2 shall be null and void.

5.3 Voting.

~~(a) ——— The Owner of each Lot to which a Membership is appurtenant shall be entitled to one vote, except that (i) the Owner of Tract E of the Subdivision shall be entitled to 66 votes, (ii) the Owner of Tract F of the Subdivision shall be entitled to 8 votes, (iii) the Owner of Tract G of the Subdivision shall be entitled to 8 votes, and (iv) the Association shall have no voting rights; provided, however, that if Tract E,~~

~~Tract F or Tract G are further subdivided, then the votes attributable to each such Tract shall be allocated among the resulting Lots in such manner as the Owners of such Lots shall agree in writing. Upon entering into any such agreement allocating votes among such Lots, the Owners of such Lots shall promptly notify the Association of the agreed upon allocation.~~

(a) The Owner of each Lot to which a Membership is appurtenant shall be entitled to one vote.

(b) Fractional voting shall not be allowed. If the Owners sharing a Membership cannot agree as to how to cast their vote(s) when they are required to cast their vote(s) on a particular matter, they shall lose their right to vote on such matter. If any Owner casts the vote(s) representing a certain Membership, it will thereafter be conclusively presumed for all purposes that the Owner was acting with the authority and consent of all other Owners with whom such Owner shares the Membership, unless objection to such vote is made to the chairperson of the meeting at the time the vote is cast. If contradictory votes are cast for any particular Membership, none of such votes shall be counted and all of such votes shall be deemed null and void.

~~(c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Declarant shall have the exclusive right to appoint and remove all members of the Board of Directors of the Association until the date on which 95 percent of the Property (including any property that has been included pursuant to Article XIV below) has been sold to a Person or Persons other than Declarant. Thereafter, Declarant shall have the exclusive right to appoint and remove two thirds of the members of the Board of Directors (rounded upward to the nearest whole director) until such time as Declarant no longer owns any Lot within the Subdivision. Declarant may relinquish the exclusive rights afforded it pursuant to the two preceding sentences in the manner provided in Section 6.2 below. Any director(s) not appointed by Declarant pursuant to the exclusive rights afforded it by this paragraph and Section 6.2 below. All directors shall be elected by the affirmative vote of a majority of the Owners present in person or by proxy at a meeting at which a quorum is present called for the purpose of electing directors-, unless a director resigns (or is otherwise removed) prior to the conclusion of her/his term, in which case the Board of Directors shall, by a majority vote, appoint a replacement director who will then hold the position until the next annual meeting.~~ Cumulative voting shall not be allowed in the election of members of the Board of Directors or for any other purpose.

(d) All meetings at which the Owners shall be presented with matters to vote on shall be called by the Board of Directors of the Association on not less than fifteen days' written notice to all Owners, which notice shall be delivered to each such Owner at the address of such Owner's property within the Subdivision, unless such Owner designates another address for such purpose by written notice to the Secretary of the Association.

5.4 Membership Rights and Obligations. Each Owner shall have the rights, duties and obligations set forth in the Association Documents.

VI. BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE ASSOCIATION

6.1 Powers of the Board of Directors.

(a) Except as provided in this Declaration, the Articles and the Bylaws, or by law, the Board of Directors may act on behalf of the Association in all instances.

(b) The Board of Directors may not act on behalf of the Association to: (i) amend this Declaration; (ii) terminate the legal status of the Subdivision; (iii) elect members of the Board of Directors, other than to fill a ~~vacancy for the unexpired portion of the term of a member of the Board of Directors as provided in the Articles and Bylaws~~ temporary vacancy until the next annual meeting; or (iv) determine the qualifications, powers and duties, or terms of office, of members of the Board of Directors.

(c) The Board of Directors shall consist of at least three members, one of whom shall be designated as ~~chairperson~~ president. The term of each director shall be as set forth in the Articles and Bylaws. A member of the Board of Directors may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Association, and such a resignation shall take effect upon receipt by the Association or such other date as is specified in such notice.

~~(d) — The Board of Directors shall appoint all members of the Review Boards and shall have the authority to remove or replace such members; of the Review Boards, with or without cause, upon a majority vote of the members of the Board of Directors; provided, however, that after the expiration of the Declarant Control Period (as defined in Section 6.2(b)) below, the members of. Any replacement member of a Review Board A shall be elected appointed by a majority vote of the Owners of Lots within Review Area A, and the members of Review Board B shall be elected by a majority vote of the Owners of Lots within Review Area B.~~

~~6.2 Declarant Control Period.~~

~~(a) — Declarant shall have the exclusive right to appoint and remove all of the members of the Board of Directors of the Association during that portion of the Declarant Control Period (as such term is defined in paragraph (b) below) commencing on the date on shall serve until the next annual meeting at which Declarant forms the Association and ending on Owners will vote for a replacement to fill the date on seat, which 95 percent of the Property (including any property that has been added pursuant to Article XIV below) has been sold to a Person or Persons other than Declarant.~~

~~(b) — Subject to the terms and conditions of paragraphs 6.2(a) above and 6.2(c) below, but notwithstanding anything else~~

~~to the contrary contained in this Declaration or in any other Association Document, Declarant shall have the exclusive right to appoint and remove two-thirds of the members of the Board of Directors of the Association during the Declarant Control Period. The term "Declarant Control Period" means the period commencing on the date on which Declarant forms the Association and ending on the date on which Declarant no longer owns any Lot.~~

~~(c) — Declarant may voluntarily surrender its right to appoint and remove all members of the Board of Directors, or any of them, prior to the expiration of the Declarant Control Period, by giving written notice to the Association that Declarant relinquishes its right to appoint all members or my member of the Board of Directors, which notice shall be accompanied by the written resignation of that member or those members of the Board of Directors. In the event Declarant so relinquishes its right with respect to a member or all members of the Board of Directors, Declarant may require, for the replacement will serve for remainder of the Declarant Control Period, that specific actions of the Association or the Board of Directors, as described in a recorded instrument executed by Declarant, be approved by the Declarant before they become effective.~~

~~(e)(d) Not later than ninety days after the expiration of the Declarant Control Period, the Owners shall elect a Board of Directors of at least removed member's three members pursuant to Section 6.1 above and the Articles and Bylaws year term.~~

~~(d) — Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, Declarant may not authorize nor cause the Board of Directors of the Association to authorize the distribution or lending of any funds from the Association to Declarant or any entity controlled by Declarant.~~

~~(e) — The Board of Directors shall have the authority to fill a temporary vacancy of a resigning or removed Director. Any replacement Director appointed by the Board of Directors shall serve until the next annual meeting at which the Owners will vote for any eligible candidate to fill the vacated seat, which replacement will serve for remainder of the resigning or removed Director's three-year term.~~

6.32 Removal of Members of the Board of Directors. Notwithstanding any provision of this Declaration or any other Association Document to the contrary, the Owners, by a vote of at least 60 percent a simple majority (50.001%) of the votes allocated to all Memberships represented in person or by proxy at any meeting at which a quorum is present, may remove any member of the Board of Directors, with or without cause, ~~other than a member of the Board of Directors appointed by Declarant.~~

VII. ASSESSMENTS, COMMON EXPENSES BUDGETS AND LIENS

~~prior to the date on which the
Conu11011 Expenses were incurred
(excluding Lots owned by Declarant)
are entitled~~

~~votes to which
such Lot is
entitled~~

—7.4 Budgets.

(a) Prior to the first levy of an Annual Assessment, and, thereafter, ~~on or before October 1 of~~ at each calendar year annual meeting of the Owners, the Owners, by a simple majority of the Owners at the annual (or any other) meeting at which quorum is present and the proposed annual budget is presented, will ratify the annual budget prepared by Board of Directors of the Association. Once ratified by the ownership, the Board of Directors of the Association shall adopt an annual budget for the Association for the ~~following~~ calendar year.

(b) If the Board of Directors of the Association deems it necessary or advisable to amend an annual budget that it has adopted under paragraph 7.4(a) above, the Board of Directors may adopt an amendment to the annual budget.

7.5 Annual Assessments.

(a) —After the Board of Directors adopts an annual budget pursuant to paragraph 7.4(a) above, the Association shall levy an Annual Assessment on each Lot ~~(excluding Lots owned by Declarant)~~ based on the budget and the allocation set forth in Section 7.3 above. Except as otherwise provided herein, the Owners shall pay the Annual Assessments levied against their respective Lots in such periodic installments as may be required by the Board of Directors.

(b) If the Board of Directors ratifies an amendment to the annual budget pursuant to paragraph 7.4(b) above, the amount of the Annual Assessment levied against each Lot shall be adjusted accordingly, as shall the amount of each Owner's periodic installments.

~~(a)~~ If the Board of Directors fails to adopt an annual budget for any calendar year prior to January 1 of that calendar year, the Owners shall continue to pay periodic installments of the Annual Assessment to the Association at the rate payable during the prior calendar year until such time as the Board of Directors adopts a new annual budget for the then-current calendar year. Once the Board of Directors adopts a new annual budget, the

(c) Association shall levy on each Lot the Annual Assessment for the then-current calendar year and each Owner's periodic installments shall be adjusted as necessary to pay the new Annual Assessment in equal periodic installments over the remainder of such calendar year, giving the Owners credit for any installments that the Owners have previously paid to the Association during such calendar year.

(d) The failure of the Association to levy an Annual Assessment for any calendar year shall not be deemed a waiver, modification or release of the Owners' liability for Common Expenses.

7.6 Default Assessments.

(a) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, if any Common Expense is caused by (i) the negligence or misconduct of an Owner or an Owner's family member, employee, agent or guest, or (ii) a violation of any covenant, condition or restriction of an Association Document by an Owner or an Owner's family member, employee, agent or guest, the Association shall, if it deems necessary or advisable, levy an Assessment against such Owner's Lot for the amount of such Common Expense. In addition, the Association shall, if it deems necessary or advisable, impose a fine, penalty, fee or other charge upon an Owner for the violation of any covenant or condition of any Association Document by an Owner or an Owner's family member, employee, agent or guest. Any such Assessment levied by the Association, and each fine, penalty, fee or other charge imposed hereunder, are each referred to herein as a "Default Assessment."

(b) Default Assessments need not be shown on an annual budget, or on an amendment to an annual budget, adopted by the Board of Directors of the Association; provided, however, that with respect to any Default Assessment, or portion thereof, levied other than as a late charge, the Owner of the Lot against which the Association seeks to levy the Default Assessment shall be provided notice and an opportunity to be heard. Owners of Lots against which Default Assessments have been levied shall pay such Default Assessments when required by the Association.

7.7 Assessment Lien.

(a) The Association shall have a lien on each Lot for any Assessment levied against that Lot or the Owner thereof and any interest, reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements and costs of collection incurred by the Association in connection therewith. The Assessment Lien shall secure all of the foregoing obligations of an Owner from the time such obligations become due. If an Assessment is payable in installments, the Assessment Lien secures each installment from the time it becomes due, including the due date set by any valid acceleration of installment obligations by the Association.

(b) An Assessment Lien is prior to all other liens and encumbrances on a Lot except:

- i. liens and encumbrances recorded prior to the recordation of this Declaration;
- ii. a Mortgage which is not subordinate to any other lien or encumbrance, except liens for taxes or other liens which are given priority by statute, and which was recorded before the

date on which the Assessment sought to be enforced became delinquent (except to the extent the Assessment Lien is afforded super-priority under the Act); and

- iii. liens for real estate taxes and other governmental assessments or charges against the Lot.

(c) If an Assessment Lien exists with respect to a Lot over which another association has or files a lien under Section 38-33.3-316 of the Act, and the Assessment Lien is prior in time to the lien of the other association, then the Assessment Lien has priority over the other association's lien notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 38-33.3-316(3) of the Act.

(d) The recording of this Declaration constitutes record notice and perfection of an Assessment Lien on each Lot. No further recordation of any claim of any Assessment Lien is required.

(e) An Assessment Lien is extinguished unless proceedings to enforce the Assessment Lien are instituted within ten years after the Assessment secured thereby becomes due.

(f) This Section 7.7 does not prohibit: (i) actions or suits to recover sums secured by an Assessment Lien, or (ii) the Association's taking of a deed in lieu of foreclosure.

(g) In any action by the Association to collect Assessments or to foreclose an Assessment Lien for unpaid Assessments, the court may appoint a receiver of the Owner to collect all sums alleged to be due from the Owner prior to or during the pendency of the action. A court may order the receiver to pay any sums held by the receiver to the Association during the pending of the action to the extent of the Association's Assessments.

(h) An Assessment Lien may be foreclosed in like manner as a mortgage on real estate.

7.8 Estoppel Certificates; Notice to Mortgagees.

(a) The Association shall furnish to an Owner or such Owner's designee or to a Mortgagee or its designee, upon written request, delivered personally or by certified mail, first-class postage prepaid, return receipt requested, to the Association's Treasurer, a statement setting forth the amount of unpaid Assessments currently levied against such Owner's Lot. The statement shall be furnished within 14 calendar days after the Association's receipt of the request and shall be binding on the Association, the Board of Directors of the Association and every Owner. If no statement is furnished by the Association to the Owner, the Mortgagee or their designee, delivered personally or by certified mail, first-class postage prepaid, return receipt requested, following a written request meeting the requirements set forth above, then the

Association shall have no right to assert an Assessment Lien upon the Lot for unpaid Assessments which were due as of the date of such request.

(b) The Association shall report to any Mortgagee any unpaid Assessments remaining unpaid for more than sixty days after the same shall have become due, if such Mortgagee first shall have delivered to the Association a written request for notice of unpaid Assessments. Any Mortgagee holding a lien on a Lot may pay any unpaid Assessment with respect to such Lot, together with any and all costs and expenses incurred with respect to the Assessment Lien securing such unpaid Assessment, and upon such payment, such Mortgagee shall have a lien on the Lot for the amounts paid with the same priority as a lien of the Mortgage held by such Mortgagee.

7.9 Limitation of Liability for Common Expense.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in any other Association Document, the annual average Common Expense liability of each Lot restricted to residential purposes (as defined in the Act), exclusive of optional user fees and any insurance premiums paid by the Association, shall not exceed the amount specified from time to time in Section 38-33.3-116 of the Act as the maximum annual average common expense liability of each unit restricted to residential purposes. The amount specified in Section 38-33.3-116 of the Act as of ~~the date hereof~~1998 is \$400 per Lot; and is to be adjusted annually to account for inflation, as set forth in Section 38-33.3-116(3).

VIII. MAINTENANCE OF COMMON ELEMENTS

Except as otherwise provided in this Declaration and subject to the provisions of Article XVI below, the Association, or its duly designated agent, shall maintain all Common Elements and the improvements and landscaping located thereon in good order and repair and otherwise manage and operate all Common Elements so that the Subdivision reflects a high level of pride of ownership. In this regard the Association may:

- (a) construct, modify, add to, replace or renovate any improvements that are located on, or constitute a part of, any Common Element;
- (b) plant and replace trees, shrubs and other vegetation on any Common Element;
- (c) place, maintain and replace signs upon any Common Element;
- (d) adopt and enforce Rules and Regulations regulating the use of Common Elements;
- (e) impose and collect fees for the use of any Common Element; and

(f) take any other actions that the Association deems necessary or advisable to (i) protect and maintain the Common Elements; (ii) preserve the beauty and value of the Subdivision; and (iii) fulfill the stated purposes of the Association.

IX. REVIEW BOARDS

9.1 Purpose. ~~Except as provided in Section 9.9 below, any~~Any and all exterior design, landscaping and uses of new development on and/or additions to any property within Review Area A as well as any changes or alterations thereto, shall be subject to review by and consent of Review Board A, and any and all exterior design, landscaping and uses of new development on and/or additions to any property within Review Area B, as well as any changes or alterations thereto, shall be subject to review by and consent of Review Board B. The goal of such review and consent shall be to create, maintain and improve the Property as a pleasant and desirable environment, establish and preserve a harmonious design for the community, and protect and enhance the value of the Property.

9.2 Appointment of Members. The Association shall establish the Review Boards consisting of a minimum of three members each. Each member of the Review Boards shall be ~~appointed~~appointed ~~by the Owners, and any such member may be removed, at any time but only for cause,~~ by the Board of Directors of the Association, ~~and any such member may be removed, with or without cause, at any time, by the Board of Directors of the Association~~ by giving written notice to such member, ~~provided, however, that after the expiration of the Declarant Control Period (as defined in Section 6.2(b) below), the members of Review Board A shall be elected by a majority vote of the Owners of Lots within Review Area A, and, in like manner to the Board of Directors,~~ the members of the Review Boards shall serve three-year staggered terms. Owners shall be entitled to vote in the election of any Review Board ~~B shall be elected by a majority vote~~member, regardless of the Owners ~~portion of Review Area B the Property in which said owner resides.~~

9.3 Authority of Review Board.

(a) ~~Except as provided in Section 9.9 below and subject~~Subject to the provisions of Article XVI below ~~and the Board of Directors' approval,~~ Review Board A and Review Board B shall each establish and have the authority to amend and modify rules, regulations and design guidelines (the "Design Guidelines") governing the design and construction of, as well as improvements to, all structures, landscaping, recreational facilities, exterior lighting, signage and general improvements proposed within Review Area A and Review Area B, respectively. ~~Any and all such Design Guidelines, together with any amendments or modifications thereto, shall be approved by Declarant for so long as Declarant continues to own any portion of the Property;~~

(b) ~~Except as provided in Section 9.9 below, the~~The following, among other things, shall require prior written approval of the Review Board: grading and other site preparation; landscaping (including, without limitation, tree cutting and clearing); building construction; sign design and erection; exterior changes to property or improvements;

modification, alteration or enlargement of any existing structure; paving and driveways; fencing; exterior lighting; location and maintenance of all structures and improvements; and changes to the permitted use of any property within the Property. In exercising its authority to modify or reject any project proposal, the Review Board may, when warranted, consider whether such proposal would cause an unacceptable disturbance of views for other sites or adjacent structures, but such consideration shall weigh heavily the right of each Owner to use and develop his or her property in keeping with the standards set forth in this Declaration. The approval of the Review Board shall not be required for alterations or remodeling which are completely within a building or structure, do not change the exterior appearance thereof and are not visible from the outside of the structure.

(c) The Review Boards shall have sole and exclusive power to enforce compliance with their respective Design Regulations, and in that regard, shall have the authority to levy and collect fines (including incremental fines for repeat offenders), sue for damages or injunctive relief, foreclose the Assessment Lien or exercise any other enforcement power conferred upon the Association by this Declaration. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein or in any other Association Document, no Owner shall have the right to enforce or seek enforcement of the covenants, conditions or restrictions contained herein or the Design Guidelines, Rules and Regulations or any other Association Documents.

(d) The Review Boards will, at the request of the Board of Directors, report to the Board of Directors and inform them of any decision by the Review Boards regarding new construction, landscaping plans, remodeling plans, and/or landscaping changes. The Review Boards shall likewise, at the request of the Board of Directors, keep the Board of Directors abreast of the progress of any project currently under Review Board supervision.

9.4 Decisions of Review Board. Actions taken by the Review Board shall not be arbitrary or capricious; and shall be presumed to be enforceable in accordance with their terms. Decisions of the Review Board shall be conclusive and binding on all interested parties. Any challenge to a decision of the Review Board must be filed in a court of competent jurisdiction within thirty days of receipt of notice of such decision by the affected party or parties.

9.5 Inspection of Projects. The Review Board or its designated representatives may monitor any approved project within the Property to ensure that the construction or work on such project complies with any and all approved plans, construction procedures, applicable Rules and Regulations and applicable law. The Review Board or its designated representatives may enter upon any property within the Property at any reasonable time or times to inspect the progress, work or completion of any project. The Review Board may withdraw its approval of any project and require all activity at such project to be stopped if deviations from the approved plan, construction practices, applicable Rules and Regulations or applicable law are not corrected or reconciled within ten days after written notification to the Owner of the subject property specifying such deviations, or within such lesser period of time as is specified by the Review Board in such notice to the owner. The Review Board shall have the authority to levy

and collect Default Assessments for such deviations, including, without limitation, incremental monetary fines for the occurrence of repeated violations.

9.6 Notice. Any material to be submitted or notice to be given to the Review Board shall be submitted at the offices of the ~~Association in the Town of Breckenridge. The current address of such office is 137 South Main Street, P.O. Box 7, Breckenridge, Colorado 80424.~~ Association's then current property management company and if no such company shall exist, then to the address directed by the Association.

9.7 Fees. The Review Board may establish a reasonable processing and review fee tied to an objective, measurable standard to defer its costs in considering any requests for approvals submitted to it, which fee shall be paid at the time the request for approval is submitted.

9.8 Review Board Not Liable. ~~Neither Declarant, the~~The Review Board, nor any of ~~their~~its respective officers, directors, employees, members or agents shall be responsible or liable for any defects in any plans or specifications which are submitted, revised or approved pursuant to this Article IX, nor for any defects in construction pursuant to such plans and specifications, nor for any loss, damage or injury arising out of or in any way connected with the performance of the duties of the Review Board, unless due to the willful misconduct or conscious bad faith of the party to be held liable. In reviewing any matter, the Review Board shall not be responsible for reviewing, nor shall its approval of any project be deemed approval of, the project from the standpoint of safety, whether structural or otherwise. Approval of plans and specifications pursuant to this Article IX shall not relieve any Owner of said Owner's responsibility to comply with any and all applicable governmental laws or regulations.

9.9 Entrance Signage. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Declaration, ~~Declarant~~the Association reserves ~~to itself and its successors and assigns,~~ the right to construct, install, operate, maintain, repair, remove, replace and reconstruct one or more signs of such types, number, design, materials, colors, sizes and contents as ~~Declarant, i.ts successors and assigns,~~the Association may from time to time desire (subject to the Breckenridge Sign Code) on, over, under and through the portions of Tract A and Lot 11 of Shock Hill Subdivision designated on the Plat as a "Public Trail Signage and Bridge Easement" (the "Sign Easement Areas"), ~~and such signs shall not be subject to the authority or control of the Review Board or the Association or any of the provisions of this Declaration or the Association Documents.~~). No other Person shall install any signs of any kind within the Sign Easement Areas without the prior written consent of ~~Declarant,~~the Association.

X. LIMITATION AND RESTRICTIONS ON BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS

10.1 Permitted Improvements-Single-Family Residential Lots. No Single-Family Residential Lot may contain any building improvements except:

(a) One Single-Family Structure together with one garage of a size sufficient to enclose a minimum of two automobiles per garage, but no more than three automobiles per garage, unless the Review Board consents in writing to the design of a larger garage; or

(b) One Single-Family Structure and one Accessory Apartment together with up to two garages, of which one garage may be of a size sufficient to enclose a minimum of two automobiles, but no more than three automobiles, and one garage, of a size sufficient to enclose no more than one automobile, unless the Review Board consents in writing to the design of a smaller or larger garage; and

(c) Such enclosed service areas for garbage, trash, utilities and other maintenance facilities as may be approved in writing by the Review Board; and

(d) Such fences, walls, driveways and parking areas as may be approved in writing by the Review Board; and

(e) Landscaping improvements approved in writing by the Review Board; and

(f) Swimming pools, hot tubs, solar devices and greenhouses approved in writing by the Review Board.

10.2 Permitted Improvements–Multi-Family Residential Lots. No Multi-Family Residential Lots may contain any building improvements except:

~~(a) One or more structures made up of apartments, townhomes, condominiums, or duplexes or tri- or four-plexes containing up to the number of SFEs permitted by the Master Plan and the number of parking spaces required by the Review Board and Town ordinances; or~~

~~(a) One or more structures for a Bed and Brealefast operation containing up to the number of SFEs permitted by the Master Plan and the number of parking spaces required by the Review Board and the Development Code Town ordinances; and~~

(b) Such enclosed service areas for garbage, trash, utilities and other maintenance facilities as may be approved in writing by the Review Board; and

(c) Such fences, walls, driveways and parking areas as may be approved in writing by the Review Board; and

(d) Landscaping improvements approved in writing by the Review Board; and

(e) Swimming pools, hot tubs, solar devices, outbuildings and greenhouses approved in writing by the Review Board.

10.3 Chalet House Operations Not Permitted. ~~Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein,~~ Chalet House operations or any other similar form of lodging are expressly prohibited on any ~~Lots designated for SFR, CSF, Duplex, MFR or THM use in the Master Plan~~ Lot.

10.4 Permitted Improvements—Open Space. Any portions of the Property that are Private Open Space may be used for picnic areas and shelters, playing fields, playgrounds, landscape improvements, pools, streams, ponds, street lighting, project identification signage, use-control signage, drainage systems, pedestrian easements, access and trail easements and underground utilities or other similar uses approved by the Town of Breckenridge and the Board of Directors, subject to the provisions of Article ~~XVIII~~ XVI below.

10.5 Prohibited Improvements. No structures or buildings of a temporary character ~~(except a sales facility or construction trailer for Declarant's use in selling or developing Lots within the Subdivision),~~ nor any mobile home, house trailer, tent, shack, or other such structure shall be placed or used within the Property, either temporarily or permanently, without prior written approval of the Review Board, which approval may be withheld in the Review Board's sole discretion. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, necessary appurtenances, modest construction trailers and structures of a temporary nature may be used without the Review Board's approval during the period of performance of construction of any improvement for which necessary government permits and Review Board approval have been obtained, provided that (a) the Review Board shall approve the location and appearance of such appurtenances, trailers or structures, (b) no overnight occupancy shall be permitted in any such appurtenance, trailer or structure, and (c) such appurtenances, trailers or structure shall be removed from the Property on the earlier of (i) the date that is twelve months after the initial use thereof ~~and/or~~ (ii) the date of substantial completion of said improvement.

10.6 Location of Dwellings and Setbacks. Location of dwellings will be in accordance with the Design Guidelines and the Development Code and, if applicable, within the building envelopes shown on the Plat, the Design Guidelines or other documents approved by the Board of Directors.

10.7 Review Board Approval Required. Each Owner agrees that he or she will not apply to the Town of Breckenridge or any other governmental authority for permission to construct building improvements on such Owner's property without the prior express written authorization of the Review Board. Any application to the Town of Breckenridge for a building permit must be for a structure as approved by the Review Board. It shall be an objective of the Review Board to prevent the making of improvements which will materially impair the aesthetic and monetary values of the Property. In reviewing proposed projects, the Review Board will consider, among other things, the following factors: (a) the suitability of the improvements and the materials of which they are to be constructed; (b) the quality of all materials to be utilized in any proposed improvement; (c) the effect of any proposed improvement on adjacent or

neighboring property, provided that each Owner of property within the Property is entitled to use and develop his or her property in accordance with the standards set forth herein and the Design Guidelines; (d) the location and character and method of utilization of all utility services; (e) the impact of any proposed improvement upon the natural surroundings; and (f) the timely and orderly completion of all such improvements.

10.8 Town Approval Required. No modification or other improvement to a Lot or dwelling unit that requires the approval of the Town of Breckenridge under the Development Code of the Town of Breckenridge or other applicable law, rule or ordinance shall be made or built until such approval has been obtained.

10.9 Square Footage Requirements. The Review Board may establish minimum and maximum square footage requirements with respect to Single-Family Structures, Accessory Apartments and living space to be contained within dwelling units constructed within Multi-Family Residential Lots.

10.10 Property to be Maintained. Except as otherwise provided herein, each Lot and all other portions of the including all improvements within the Property, shall be kept and maintained by the Owner(s) thereof in a clean, safe, attractive and slightly condition and in good repair.

10.11 No Illegal, Noxious or Offensive Activity. No illegal, noxious or offensive activity shall be carried on upon any portion of the Property nor shall anything be done or placed on any Property which is or may become a nuisance or cause any significant embarrassment, disturbance or annoyance to others.

10.12 No Hazardous Activities. No activities shall be conducted on any portion of the Property and no improvements may be constructed on any portion of the Property which are or might be unsafe or hazardous to any person or Property; provided, however, that construction activities that comply with ~~Aniele XVII~~Article XVI below and for which all applicable permits and Review Board approval have been obtained and which are conducted in accordance with industry standards shall not violate this Section. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, (a) no firearms shall be discharged upon any portion of the Property, and (b) no open fires shall be lighted or permitted on the Property except in a contained barbecue unit while attended and in use for cooking purposes or within a safe and well-designed interior fireplace (except (i) controlled picnic fires in Open Space which may be designated for such use by the Association and (ii) attended fires authorized in writing by the Association and required for clearing or maintenance of land).

10.13 Restriction on Further Subdivision: Combining Lots.

(a) No Lot (other than Multi-Family Residential Lots or Lots designated for CSF use in the Master Plan) shall be further subdivided or separated into smaller lots by any Owner, and no portion less than all of any Lot, nor any easement or other interest therein, shall be conveyed or transferred by any Owner without the prior written approval of

~~Declarant~~the Association, which approval may be withheld in ~~Declarant's~~the Board of Directors' sole discretion. Multi-Family Residential Lots may be subdivided into separate Lots, duplex, condominium or townhouse units without the prior written approval of ~~Declarant~~the Board of Directors, on the conditions that (i) such subdivision does not cause the Lot to exceed the density allocated to that Lot under the Master Plan and the recorded subdivision plat creating that Lot, (ii) the Owner of the Lot obtains the prior written approval of the Review Board, and (iii) such subdivision fully complies with such approval of the Review Board and with all applicable restrictions and code provisions of the Town of Breckenridge. ~~This provision shall not, in any way, limit Declarant from subdividing any land reserved for future development or any other land owned by Declarant in accordance with the provisions of the Master Plan.~~

(b) With the approval of the Review Board and any controlling government entity, any Owner of two or more adjacent Lots, which Lots share one or more lot lines, may resubdivide said Lots for the purpose of adjusting the size of the resulting lot or lots; provided, however, that the Review Board shall have the authority to modify or supplement the covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to such resulting lots and to condition its approval on the Owner's agreement to be bound thereby, and the Review Board may withhold its approval of any such resubdivision which the Review Board determines, in its sole discretion, is inconsistent with the intent of the Master Plan or the original design philosophy of the Subdivision. In no event, however, shall the Review Board approve any subdivision of Lots pursuant to the preceding sentence if such subdivision would increase the number of Lots within the property to be subdivided. Any Owner desiring to resubdivide Lots pursuant to this Section shall fully comply with all applicable ordinances and regulations of the Town of Breckenridge and shall prepare, execute and record in Summit County, Colorado: (i) an appropriate amendment to the Plat conforming to all requirements of the Development Code and containing the consent of the Review Board and of the holders of any mortgages or deeds of trust encumbering the affected Lots and (ii) any instruments necessary to subject the resubdivided Lots to any modified or supplemental covenants, conditions and restrictions required by the Review Board as a condition of its approval. All expenses associated with the resubdivision (including, without limitation, the costs of preparing the subdivision plat, costs incurred in connection with any modification or supplementation of the covenants, conditions and restrictions applicable to the resubdivided lots, attorneys' fees incurred by the Review Board, and recording and filing fees) shall be the responsibility of and paid by the Owner desiring such resubdivision.

10.14 Sewage Disposal Systems. No cesspools or septic tanks shall be permitted on any portion of the Property without the prior written approval of the Review Board.

10.15 Fences. All fences, walls or other barriers on any Lot, as limited by the Design Guidelines, may be erected only upon prior written approval of the Review Board.

10.16 Paved Areas and Driveway Construction. Private driveways and parking areas within the Property must be paved in accordance with the Design Guidelines. Materials used to create special paving patterns are subject to Review Board approval.

10.17 Storage of Equipment and Vehicles. All boats, snowplows, campers and extra motor vehicles must be stored in a garage. Motor homes, travel trailers, construction equipment and other outsized machinery and equipment shall not be stored or parked within the Property; provided, however, that the Review Board may waive this restriction, in its sole discretion, in writing. This Section 10.17 shall not prohibit the storage or parking of construction equipment and machinery within the Property during the period of construction activities for which all applicable permits and Review Board approval have been obtained, provided that the Review Board may require the removal of any such equipment or machinery upon notice to the Owner of the affected Lot.

10.18 No Unsightliness. No unsightliness shall be permitted on any Property. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing: (a) all unsightly structures, facilities, equipment, objects and conditions shall be enclosed within an approved structure, except as otherwise provided herein; (b) refuse, garbage and trash shall be kept in a covered container at all times and any such container shall be kept within an enclosed structure; (c) service areas and facilities for hanging, drying or airing clothing or fabrics shall be kept within an enclosed structure; (d) pipes for water, gas, sewer, drainage or other purposes, wires, poles, antennas and other facilities for the transmission or reception of audio or visual signals or electricity, utility meters or other utility facilities, gas, oil, water or other tanks shall be kept and maintained within an enclosed structure or below the surface of the ground unless otherwise approved in writing by the Review Board prior to installation, except that satellite reception equipment no larger than 18 inches in diameter shall be permissible upon written approval of the proposed location thereof by the Review Board; and (e) no metals, bulk materials or scrap or refuse or trash or unused items of any kind (other than a reasonable amount of neatly stacked firewood) shall be kept, stored or allowed to accumulate on any Property. ~~Nothing contained in the foregoing shall prohibit the installation of sewer lift station facilities in such locations as Declarant deems necessary or appropriate.~~ All enclosed structures shall comply with the Rules and Regulations as in effect from time to time. The Review Board shall have the power to grant a variance from the provisions of this Section 10.18 from time to time as it deems necessary or desirable.

10.19 Pets. Dogs, cats or customary household pets, not to exceed three pets per dwelling unit, may be kept on the Property without the prior written approval of the Review Board. No wild animal, reptile or bird may be trapped, transported, kept or maintained anywhere within the Property, except for (a) animal control activities of authorized governmental entities and licensed contractors and (b) activities of Owners to trap rodents for the purpose of removal or destruction. No pet may be kept which abnormally or unreasonably interferes with the rights, comforts or convenience of other Owners. For-profit breeding of any animals on the Property is specifically prohibited. All pets must be kept on a leash when outside an Owner's residence. No horses may be stabled or kept anywhere on the Property.

10.20 Restriction on Signs. ~~Except as otherwise provided in Section 9.9 above,~~ ~~no~~ No signs or advertising devices of any nature shall be erected or maintained on any Property except signs approved by the Review Board, signs required by law or legal proceedings, identification signs for work under construction (not to exceed six square feet), temporary signs to caution or warn of danger or Association signs necessary or desirable to give directions or

advise of rules or regulations. ~~Except as otherwise provided in Section 9.9 above, the~~The Review Board shall have the authority to approve the size and location of signs within the Property. Design Regulations adopted by the Review Board in regard to signage may be more restrictive than the Development Code. Without limiting the foregoing, the Review Board may adopt a standard “for sale” sign to be used by all Owners in connection with any sale of any Lot.

10.21 Restriction on Parking. Parking of vehicles on the Property or any portion thereof is permitted with respect to a Lot only within parking spaces constructed with the prior approval of the Review Board and such parking shall be used only by the Owner or Lessee of such Lot or their guests for the parking of personal vehicles. The Association shall have the right to park any type of vehicle owned or used by the Association upon the Property only within parking areas ~~either built by Declarant or~~ approved by the Review Board in such areas designated for such purpose by ~~Declarant~~the Association. Notwithstanding the above, the Association may designate areas for off-street parking on the Property or any portion thereof for the temporary parking of maintenance and delivery vehicles, for the sole purpose of assisting in a maintenance operation or to provide for the loading or unloading of such vehicles, or to accommodate special circumstance. No bus shall be permitted to idle for periods in excess of ten minutes or to park for periods in excess of 30 minutes anywhere on the Property without the prior express written consent of the Review Board.

10.22 Restriction on Recreational Vehicles. No motorcycle, motorbike, snowmobile, golf cart or other motorized recreational vehicle shall be operated within or on the Property except for any equipment used in maintenance or repair of any Common Areas or Trail Easements or as otherwise specifically permitted by the Rules and Regulations. Motorcycles and motorbikes may be operated on public roads within the Subdivision in accordance with all applicable laws, provided that such use shall be subject to the Rules and Regulations, including, without limitation, those Rules and Regulations governing noise, nuisances and other similar issues.

10.23 Restriction on Wood Burning. All wood-burning devices and wood burning within the Property shall comply fully with all applicable laws and regulations of the Town of Breckenridge and all other applicable laws.

10.24 No Wells. No water wells shall be permitted on the Property or any portion thereof without the prior written approval of the Review Board.

10.25 No Mining or Drilling. No property shall be used for the purpose of mining, quarrying drilling, boring or exploring for or removing oil, gas or other hydrocarbons, minerals, rocks, stones, gravel or earth.

~~10.27 Additional Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions. By specific provision in any deed from Declarant, Declarant may subject any Property to be conveyed by such deed to particular covenants, conditions or restrictions applicable to the particular Property conveyed by such deed and, if any such deed contains any such covenants, conditions or restrictions, the deed may contain a provision that Declarant shall have the right,~~

~~immediately or at any time during the continuation of any violation or breach of or failure to comply with any of said covenants, conditions or restrictions, to re-enter and retake possession of the Property described in such deed and that, upon exercise of this right of re-entry, title to such Property shall thereupon vest in Declarant.~~

10.26 Transportation System Activities. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Declaration or the Association Documents, the construction, installation, operation, maintenance, repair, removal, replacement and reconstruction of one or more gondolas, chair lifts, or other aerial transportation systems, funiculars or other surface transportation systems, over, across and through the Subdivision (collectively “Transportation System Activities”) shall not be deemed a nuisance or prohibited activity for any reason. Each Owner, by accepting a deed to a Lot (whether or not expressly stated in such deed), shall be deemed to have waived any and all claims of any kind against ~~Declarant~~the Association, its successors and assigns, and ~~their respective~~its affiliates, members, managers, officers, directors, employees, agents and contractors, based upon, arising out of or related to the Transportation System Activities.

XI. USE OF RESTRICTED LOTS AND PARCELS

11.1 Residential Purposes Only. ~~Except for Tracts E, F and G of the Subdivision (and any Lots resulting from the further subdivision of such Tracts),~~
~~no~~No Lot may be used other than for residential purposes with customary accessory uses, which customary accessory uses shall include without limitation traditional long- or short-term rentals of property to persons who use such improvements for residential or lodging purposes. Such customary accessory uses shall specifically exclude Bed and Breakfast, Chalet House and other similar operations, which are hereby expressly prohibited. Lots may be used for “Home Occupations” as defined in and ~~Breakfast and, to the extent~~ permitted under the Master Plan and the recorded subdivision plat creating the Lot, Development Code.

11.2 Open Space. Except as set forth below, no building improvements may be constructed or maintained on any Private Open Space, except those permitted under Section 10.4 above.

11.3 Applications for Zoning or Subdivision ~~Changes. For so long as Declarant owns any portion of the Property, no~~Changes. No Owner of any Lot within the Property ~~other than Declarant~~ may apply to Summit County, Colorado, or to the Town of Breckenridge or any governmental jurisdiction to change the zoning applicable to such owner’s Lot, or to subdivide such Lot, without the prior written approval of the Review Board.

11.4 Restriction Prohibition on Timeshare Ownership. No Owner of any Lot within any portion of the Property ~~other than Tracts C, E or G of the Subdivision~~ shall dedicate or submit such ~~Owner's~~Owner's Lot to a timeshare or similar arrangement ~~without the prior written approval of the Association, which may be withheld in its sole discretion. Timeshare or other similar ownership arrangements are permitted in Tracts C, E and G.~~

XII. BUILDING GUIDELINES

12.1 Design Regulations. All building improvements within the Property must be built strictly in accordance with all applicable laws, this Declaration, the Rules and Regulations and the provisions of the Design Guidelines as adopted by the Review Board.

12.2 Authority of Review Board. By acquiring any interest in any of the Property, the Owner of such property consents to and accepts the authority of the Review Board to review and approve the plans and specifications for any improvements on such Property in accordance with the Design Guidelines as in effect from time to time. In particular, such Owner recognizes that certain of the judgments which will be made by the Review Board are subjective in nature, and such Owner agrees not to contest such subjective judgments unless they are made in bad faith or in an arbitrary and capricious manner.

XIII. EASEMENTS AND LICENSES

~~13.1 Declarant Reservation Declarant reserves to itself, its successors and assigns, the right to establish from time to time, by dedication or otherwise, underground utility and other reasonable easements, permits or licenses over, across, through and under the Property, excluding those portions of the Property within building envelopes designated on the Plat, for any purpose or use necessary or convenient for the use and occupancy of the Property or any other property owned by Declarant, which easements, permits or licenses may include, without limitation, water, sewer, gas, electricity, television cable, drainage, and irrigation,~~

~~13.2 Association's Association's Easements Over Lots. Declarant hereby grants the~~

~~13.3~~ 13.1 the Association and the Review Board possess an easement over, across, through and under each Lot to (a) exercise any right held by the Association or the Review Board under this Declaration or any other Association Document, and (b) perform any obligation imposed upon the Association or the Review Board by this Declaration or any other Association Document. Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither the Association nor the Review Board shall enter upon any Lot without reasonable prior notice to the Owner of the Lot, except in cases of emergency.

13.4 Emergency Access Easement. ~~Declarant~~The Association hereby grants a perpetual, nonexclusive easement to all police, sheriff, fire protection, ambulance and other similar agencies and persons to enter upon the Property in the performance of their duties.

13.5 Recorded Easements. The Property shall be subject to all easements as shown on any recorded Plat and to any other easements of record or of use as of the date of recordation of this Declaration. In addition, the Property is subject to all easements created by this Declaration.

~~xrv. RIGHT TO INCLUDE ADDITIONAL REAL PROPERTY AND EXCLUDE~~

REAL PROPERTY

~~14.1 Right to Include Additional Real Property.~~ For so long as Declarant owns any portion of the Property (including any property that has previously been included pursuant to this Article XIV), Declarant may subject additional real property to this Declaration by recording in the real property records of Summit County, Colorado, an instrument signed by Declarant setting forth the following: (a) a statement that the real property to be added is owned by Declarant and is adjacent to the Property or within one mile of any boundary of the Property, (b) a statement that Declarant has determined that such real property should be included as a part of the Property, (c) the legal description of the real property to be added, and (d) a statement that the property to be added shall be subject to and governed by the provisions of this Declaration and specifying whether such real property is to be included in Review Area A or Review Area B. Upon the recording of such instrument, (i) the real property described therein shall thereafter be part of the Property and shall be governed by all of the provisions herein, and (ii) the Declaration shall be deemed amended to add such additional property to the definition and description of the Property herein.

~~Right to Exclude Real Property.~~ For so long as Declarant owns any portion of the Property (including any property that has been included pursuant to this Article XIV) any real property made part of the Property and subject to this Declaration, pursuant to this Declaration or Section 14.1 above, may at any time prior to conveyance of such property to a third party be excluded from the Property and made no longer subject to this Declaration by the recording in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Summit County, Colorado, of a written instrument signed by Declarant containing (a) a legal description of the real property to be excluded, (b) a statement that such real property is owned by Declarant, and (c) a statement that said real property shall no longer be deemed to be a part of the Property or bound by or subject to any part of this Declaration.

XIV. INSURANCE

The Association shall obtain and maintain such insurance as the Board of Directors of the Association shall deem necessary.

~~1615.1~~ Enforcement.

(a) Each provision of this Declaration binding upon an Owner or a Lot is enforceable only by the Association by a proceeding for a prohibitive or mandatory injunction or by suit or action to recover damages, or in the discretion of the Association, for so long as any Owner fails to comply with any such provision, by exclusion of such Owner and such Owner's family members, tenants and guests from the use of any Common Elements and from participation in any Association affairs. In addition, if an Owner fails to perform or observe any covenant or condition on such Owner's part to be performed or observed under this Declaration or any other Association Document, the Association shall have the following rights and remedies:

- i. The Association may, but is not obligated to, cure such failure to comply at the Owner's sole cost and expense. If

the Association cures any such failure to comply, the Owner shall pay to the Association the amount of all costs incurred by the Association in connection therewith within thirty days after the Owner receives a written invoice therefor from the Association.

ii. The Association may fine the Owner in accordance with Section 7.6 for each violation. The Owner shall pay any such Default Assessment to the Association within thirty days after the Owner receives written notice thereof.

ii-iii. The Association shall have all other rights and remedies available to it under this Declaration, at law or in equity.

(b) All rights and remedies of the Association shall be cumulative and the exercise of one right or remedy shall not preclude the exercise of any other right or remedy.

16.15.2 Attorneys' Fees. In the event of any dispute under or with respect to this Declaration or any other Association Document, or compliance therewith, the prevailing party (as to liability, without regard to any damage award) shall be entitled to recover from the non-prevailing party all of its costs and expenses in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees and disbursements.

16.15.3 Interest. If an Owner fails to pay to the Association any Assessment or other amount due to the Association as and when the same becomes due, the Owner shall pay interest on such unpaid amount to the Association at the rate equal to the prime rate published from time to time in the "Money Rates" section of The Wall Street Journal as the base rate on corporate loans posted by at least 75 percent of the nation's 30 largest banks (or if such publication is ever discontinued, then such rate as the Association determines to be an appropriate equivalent), plus five percentage points, which interest shall accrue from the due date of such unpaid amount until the date paid.

XVII.

XV. ENVIRONMENTAL MATTERS

17.1 16.1 Release and Waiver. By accepting a deed to a Lot (whether or not it shall be expressly stated in such deed), each Owner, on behalf of itself, its successors and assigns, shall be deemed to have acknowledged Seller's disclosure of historic mining activities and existing and possible future Designated Areas in connection therewith, and to have released, covenanted not to sue, and waived any and all claims, rights, suits, damages, actions or causes of action against ~~Declarant~~ the Association, its members, managers, agents or employees, arising out of, connected to, or related in any way to any environmental, mining-related or geotechnical defects, matters or conditions in, on, or about the Property or the Subdivision. This release, covenant not to sue and waiver shall be deemed to be a covenant running with the land.

16.2 Storm Water Drainage Plan. The Property is subject to a Storm Water Drainage Plan that has been prepared for the benefit of the Subdivision and the protection of all Owners, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein (the “Drainage Plan”). Notwithstanding anything in this Declaration or the Association Documents to the contrary, the Property shall at all times be used in accordance with the Drainage Plan.

~~17~~

16.3. Specific Restrictions. The following specific restrictions are in addition to, and not in limitation of, the general restrictions contained in Section ~~17~~16.2 above.

(a) No alterations to the ground surface topography or obstructions to flow shall be made that would cause surface runoff water currently flowing within one drainage basin, as shown on the Drainage Plan, to flow into another drainage basin, or that would cause surface runoff water to be collected by different drainage Structures (including but not limited to curbs and gutters, berms, ditches, swales, detention ponds, and culverts) than shown on the Drainage Plan, or that would cause or contribute to water collection or erosion in, on, or around any Designated Area (as defined below).

(b) No alterations shall be made to any drainage structures shown on the Drainage Plan.

(c) No changes to the Property or any part thereof shall be made that cause or may be likely to cause surface runoff water to exceed the quantities shown in the Drainage Plan or the capacities of the drainage structures.

(d) There shall be no disturbance or any actions that lead to disturbance of closed shafts and adits, mining-related materials, or any capping or other reclamation of such locations or materials. This restriction includes, without limitation, a prohibition on grading, excavation, drilling, boring, mining on or into, any other physical disturbance of any Designated Area (as defined below), and the planting of any trees or bushes on any Designated Area.

(e) Release. Each Owner, by accepting a deed to a Lot (whether or not expressly stated in such deed), shall be deemed to have waived any and all claims of any kind against ~~Declarant,~~ the Association, or ~~their~~its successors and assigns, and ~~their~~its respective affiliates, members, managers, officers, directors, employees, agents and contractors ~~of either of them,~~ based upon, arising out of, or related to the Drainage Plan or any Designated Areas.

(f) Enforcement. The Association shall ensure that the Property is used and maintained at all times in conformance with the Drainage Plan, and that the provisions of this Section ~~17~~16 are enforced. The Association shall ensure that any Design Guidelines are consistent with the restrictions set forth in this Section ~~17~~16.

(g) Designated Areas. The ~~Declarant, during the period of Declarant Control, and thereafter the~~ Association may designate any “Designated Areas” that are subject to the restrictions contained in this Section ~~17~~16, by generally describing the location of such Designated Areas on the Plat or on a map to be attached to an amendment to this Declaration. ~~As~~

~~of the date of this Declaration, Declarant has~~ Several such areas have already been designated ~~several such areas;~~ to be used as a repository for mining-related waste materials, located in the Open Space of the Property as shown on Exhibit C hereto. ~~The designation of a Designated Area by Declarant may not be revoked, altered or amended by the Association without the prior written consent of the Declarant.~~

a) — Modification of Drainage Plan. ~~Declarant reserves the right, within the period of Declarant Control, to amend, supplement or modify the Drainage Plan, in its~~

~~(h) sole and absolute discretion. In addition, after the period of Declarant Control, the~~ The Association may modify the Drainage Plan, subject to the following conditions:

- i. The Association shall have determined, in the exercise of its reasonable judgment, by a vote of at least 2/3rds of the members of the board of directors of the Association, that the proposed modifications to the Drainage Plan will benefit the Property and will not result in any disturbance of any Designated Area;
- ii. An independent professional engineer, duly license in the State of Colorado, with at least 10 years' experience in storm water drainage plans shall have determined, in the exercise of its professional judgment, that the proposed modifications to the Drainage Plan are necessary or desirable for the effective drainage of surface water on the Property and will not result in any disturbance of closed shafts and mining waste materials, and caps placed over these materials or in any disturbance of any Designated Area;
- iii. Such modifications are approved by at least 2/3rds of the votes of members of the Association; and
- iv. Such modifications have been approved by the Town of Breckenridge.

~~XV-XVI.~~ XVIII, MISCELLANEOUS

1817.1 Rule Against Perpetuities and Termination. Each provision contained in this Declaration which is subject to the laws or rules sometimes referred to as the rule against perpetuities or the rule prohibiting unreasonable restraints on alienation shall continue and remain in full force and effect for the period of 21 years following the death of the last survivor

of the now living issue of former U.S. President George Bush and the now living children of said issue, or until this Declaration is terminated earlier by recorded instrument, directing termination, signed by the Owners of all property within the Subdivision. ~~Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth herein, Declarant may terminate this Declaration at any time prior to the conveyance of any portion of the Property to a third party.~~

~~18~~17.2 Amendment.

~~(a) — Prior to the closing of the sale of the first Lot, Declarant may amend this Declaration in its sole discretion. Declarant may at any time amend this Declaration to add property to the Property pursuant to Article XIV above.~~

~~(b) Except as provided in paragraph 18.2(a) above, this~~ This Declaration may be amended only by the vote or written consent of ~~(i) Owners of Property (including Declarant)~~ having at least ~~75~~sixty-seven percent (67%) of the total number of votes to which all Owners are entitled, ~~and (ii) Declarant, for so long as Declarant owns any portion of the Property.~~ Any amendment to the Declaration shall be evidenced by the recording of a written instrument or instruments specifying the amendment or the repeal and containing the consents required above, if any. ~~No amendment may remove, revoke or modify any right or privilege of Declarant without the prior written consent of Declarant or the Assignee of such right or privilege.~~

17.3 Covenants Binding. Each provision of this Declaration and a promise, covenant and undertaking to comply with each such provision (i) shall be deemed incorporated in each deed or other instrument by which any right, title or interest in my of the Property is granted, devised or conveyed; (ii) shall by virtue of acceptance of any right, title or interest in any of the Property by an Owner be deemed accepted, ratified, adopted and declared as a personal covenant of such Owner and shall be binding on such Owner or his or her respective heirs, personal representatives, successors or assigns, to, with and for the benefit of the Declarant and all Owners within the Property; (iii) shall be deemed a covenant, obligation and restriction secured by a lien binding, burdening and encumbering the title to all of such Owner's right, title and interest to any of the Property, which lien shall be deemed a lien in favor of the Declarant, ~~as its interest may appear,~~ and all Owners within the Property; and (iv) shall run with the Land. No amendment may remove, revoke or modify any right or privilege of Declarant without the prior written consent of Declarant or the Assignee of such right or privilege.

17.4 Lender's Interest Not Impaired. No violation or breach of, or failure to comply with, any provision of this Declaration and no action to enforce any such provision shall affect, defeat, render invalid or impair the lien of any Mortgagee taken in good faith and for value and perfected by recording in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of Summit County, Colorado, prior to the time of recording in said office of an instrument describing such Property and listing the name or names of the Owner or Owners of fee simple title to the Property and giving notice of such violation, breach or failure to comply; nor shall such violation, breach, failure to comply or action to enforce affect, defeat, render invalid or impair the title or interest of the holder of any

such Mortgage acquired by a bona fide purchaser upon foreclosure of any such Mortgage, or result in any liability, personal or otherwise of any such holder or purchaser. Any such purchaser on foreclosure shall, however, take subject to this Declaration with the exception of violations or breaches of, or failures to comply with, any provisions of this Declaration which occurred prior to the vesting of fee simple title in such purchaser shall not be deemed breaches or violations hereof or failures to comply herewith with respect to such purchaser, his heirs, personal representatives, successors or assigns.

~~18.3 Interpretation of This Declaration. Except for judicial construction, the Association shall have the exclusive right to construe and interpret the provisions of this Declaration. In the absence of any adjudication to the contrary by court of competent jurisdiction, the construction or interpretation of the provisions hereof by the Association shall be final, conclusive and binding as to all persons and property benefitted or bound by the covenants and the provisions hereof.~~

~~18.4~~ 17.5 Snow Removal and Stacking. The Town of Breckenridge will be responsible for snow clearing, removal and stacking following acceptance of the public roads by the Town of Breckenridge. Various areas within the Subdivision may be designated by the Association from time to time as snow stacking areas. Neither the Town of Breckenridge, ~~nor~~ the Association ~~nor Declarant~~ will be responsible for snow clearing, removal or stacking on any private access easement or drive.

~~18.5~~ 17.6 Failure to Act. Neither ~~Declarant~~ Board of Directors nor the Review Board, nor any member, agent or employee of any of the same shall be liable to any party for any action or for any failure to act with respect to any matter if the action taken or failure to act is in good faith and without malice.

~~18.6~~ 17.7 Declaration Binding. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Declaration shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of ~~Declarant~~ the Association and each Owner and the respective heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns of each.

~~18.7~~ 17.8 Severability. Invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Declaration in whole or in part shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provision or any valid and enforceable part of a provision of this Declaration.

~~18.8~~ 17.9 Failure to Enforce. Failure to enforce any provision of this Declaration shall not operate as a waiver of any such provision or of any other provision of this Declaration.

~~18.9~~ 17.10 Disclaimer of Representations. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Declaration, Declarant makes no warranties or representations whatsoever that the plan presently envisioned for the complete development of the Subdivision can or will be carried out or that any land now owned or hereafter acquired by Declarant is or will be subjected to this Declaration, or that any such land, whether or not it has been subjected to this Declaration,

is or will be committed to or developed for a particular use, or that if such land is once used for a particular use, that such use will continue in effect.

~~18.10~~ 17.11 Captions and Titles. All captions and titles of headings of Articles and Sections in this Declaration are for the purpose of reference and convenience only and are not to be deemed or construed to limit, modify or otherwise affect any of the provisions hereof or to be used in determining the intent or context thereof

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, ~~Declarant has~~Owners have executed this Declaration as of the date first set forth above.

~~Shock Hill Development LLC,~~

CERTIFICATION

The Secretary of Shock Hill Property Owners' Association, Inc., by his or her signature below, hereby certifies, affirms and attests that this Second Amended and Restated Declaration of Land Use Restrictions for Shock Hill Subdivision, has been approved and adopted by the Owners holding not less than seventy-five percent (75%) of the votes possible to be cast under the Declaration, and that such signatures are on file in the office of Shock Hill Property Owners' Association, Inc.

**SHOCK HILL PROPERTY OWNERS'
ASSOCIATION, INC.**, a Colorado
nonprofit corporation

By: _____
_____, Secretary

Date: _____

EXHIBIT A

Description of Property

Lots 1 through 38 and Tracts A, B, C, E, F, G, H, I, J, L, M, N, O, R, Shock Hill Subdivision,
Town of Breckenridge, County of Summit, State of Colorado.

EXHIBIT B

Drainage Plan

See Attached

EXHIBIT C

Designated Areas

See Attached